Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
July 22, 2024

The Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees met on Monday, July 22, 2024 to transact business. Mr. Jordan called the
meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and all joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. Gary Jordan, Guy Bainum and Bari
Henning answered the roll call. Also present were Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson, Maintenance Supervisor/Zoning
Administrator Brian Tatman, Emergency Services Chief Jason McCarthy, Charlie Maklem, Jody Wilson, Greg Hoover,
Corporal Adam Bailey, John Wilson, and Ed Boll.

Mr. Henning motioned to approve the minutes of the July 8, 2024 regular meeting. Mr. Bainum second. All yeas.

Mr. Lefferson presented a financial report, including a comprehensive account of expenditures and receipts, an appropriation
status report indicating year-to-date expenditures by account, and a revenue status report comparing budgeted revenue to
actual received, and the Trustees accepted it.

Mr. Bainum motioned to approve the attached bills. Mr. Henning second. All yeas.

Corporal Adam Bailey of the Clermont County Sheriff’s Office gave a report on activity in the Township. His review of
June activity included two felony investigations, four misdemeanors, two mental health concerns forwarded to the
appropriate agencies, and eight non-criminal offenses. Corporal Bailey stated there were extra patrol requests for West Fork
Ridge Road due to dirt bikes on the road. He indicated the Sheriff’s Office had contact with the parents and the activity
should cease. Mr. Jordan said he appreciated them keeping an eye on the Commons of East Fork. The Trustees stated they
appreciated the report and Corporal Bailey’s service.

John Wilson of Tate Township stated he was here to discuss solar projects and share the zoning codes that his Township was
looking to approve. Mr. Jordan said that Batavia, Jackson, and Williamsburg Township have worked together on their latest
solar proposals along with Joe Speeg, Jackson Township Trustee and our representative on the Ohio Power Siting Board for
the Clear Mountain solar project. He indicated that Zoning Administrator Brian Tatman had put together a document and
shared it with the Clermont County Prosecutor’s Office on Friday for review. Mr. Jordan said he appreciated the information
from Tate Township and that Williamsburg may share some back. Mr. Wilson said in April of last year they invited in
experts on solar and reached out to the public. Citizens from Jefferson and Shawnee Townships shared their resolutions after
dealing with these issues a few years ago. One of the goals was to potentially learn from the mistakes of other people. Tate
Township used the work of other experts and it was being used as a template throughout Ohio. The proposed code broke
solar projects into four categories. Mr. Wilson reviewed the document. Mr. Jordan asked if in their code was there a ceiling
on the amount of solar a farmer could generate for their own operation. Mr. Wilson said it would have to be less than 5
megawatts. There was discussion about not trying to restrict private use or use for a business. Mr. Wilson discussed Tate
Township’s proposed solar project application fee of $1,000 per megawatt. He used the example of a 40-megawatt project
generating a fee of $40,000 which was nonrefundable. He mentioned that the term “nameplate capacity” was important to
use in the documentation. Mr. Wilson stated they also have proposed an annual service fee. Mr. Wilson indicated that Tate
Township suffered approximately $250,000 in road damage associated with the solar project in their Township. Road
agreements which are in effect only during construction have not proved helpful. He stated they receive $53,000 annually for
roads from the project. Mr. Wilson said in the new proposed rules there are requirements like utilizing a camera in culverts
every three years to detect damage and specifying 10-foot trees bordering a solar project to address one of the major
complaints of citizens. Mr. Wilson said Williamsburg Township should feel free to use any of the information and his
purpose was to share. Mr. Jordan asked if Mr. Wilson would take questions from the audience. Mr. Wilson said he would.
Mr. Boll wanted to confirm that the requirements discussed had to do with solar projects 50 megawatts or less. Mr. Wilson
said yes. Mr. Wilson said with the more specific requirements in the zoning code the township can handle versus going
through the Prosecutor’s Office. He stated that Tate Township is expected to approve the new requirements July 31%t. Mr.
Hoover asks if there were any escalation clauses in the bonds or escrow accounts established to help offset road damage. Mr.
Wilson said they added fees to the standard fee page. Mr. Hoover asked about a recent law change. Mr. Wilson said the
Prosecutor’s Office had approved. Mr. Wilson indicated that of the $700,000 annual revenue expected from the Tate
Township solar project roughly $500,000 goes to the County and $200,000 goes to the Township and schools. Mr. Jordan
said the Trustees appreciated the information.

Zoning Report
Mr. Tatman provided a report. He stated the Zoning Commission met on July 18 and finished up the solar resolution for less

than 50 megawatts. He indicated it was a great experience for everyone and all members have a copy along with the
Trustees. As was stated earlier he sent it to the Prosecutor’s Office to see what needs to be fixed or changed. Mr. Tatman
said once he gets the solar zoning resolution back, he will meet with the Zoning Commission again and address any
necessary corrections. He indicated that the Cloud Permit zoning software is coming along with the first part to go into



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
July 22, 2024

service at the end of August and the second part will be ready for mid-September. He said weekly meetings with Cloud
Permit are occurring. Mr. Tatman said he attended a hearing with Judge Miles July 15" at 1:00 p.m. regarding the airsoft gun
park operating in the Township. There were no attorneys representing the other party and the Judge said they need to get an
attorney and put the proceedings on continuance. The Temporary Restraining Order on the operation of the airsoft gun park
remains in place through the end of the month. Mr. Tatman said the Prosecutor’s Office indicated that the owners want to
mediate. Mr. Hoover said he was in attendance tonight to get an update on this situation. He said that the Park Operators
said on social media that the issues would be settled through the mediation and that they expected to file paperwork and pay
the fees. Mr. Jordan said we won’t address the social media part and that we cannot control social media. He said our intent
is that they will be in compliance with Zoning requirements. Mr. Jordan said they will have to comply; the alleged
trespassing is a separate civil issue. He stated it was never our intent to collect zoning fees and move on. Mr. Hoover said he
gave the Prosecutor’s Office background information and maps in November of 2022. Mr. Henning said we will address the
zoning violations and all buildings must be in compliance. Mr. Hoover said he was just trying to get clarification. Mr. Jordan
said we will see where the Prosecutor’s Office lands and progresses. He suggested to Mr. Hoover that he could still speak to
the prosecutor. Mr. Jordan asked Mr. Tatman to review the Ohio Revised Code as to what was appropriate to charge for a
nuisance order on grass and put something together.

Cemetery and Maintenance Report
Mr. Tatman provided a report. He said he had a quote for blacktopping around the new maintenance building including the
parking area to the south of the building and the bay entrance area for $27,460. He provided a drawing of the proposed work.
The quote was from Roberts Paving. Mr. Tatman indicated he had received another quote for over $50,000 for the same area.
He stated he also had a quote for blacktopping the gravel roads in the main cemetery and pointed out the proposed areas on
the drawing. Mr. Tatman indicated it would be the gravel road down to the old part of the cemetery and the two gravel roads
toward the woods in the upper part of the cemetery. One of the gravel roads is adjoining the new building paving so it should
be done when the parking lot and bay entrances are done. The quote on that work from Roberts Paving was $19,525. Mr.
Lefferson said since the Township was not selected for the 2024 Community Development Block Grant in which we put in
for $88,000 for cemetery area paving, it was appropriate to move forward with doing what paving we could. Mr. Tatman
said he had a quote for materials for a pavilion at Concord Cemetery for $9,400. Mr. Jordan said he had reached out to
Kenny Carter at Grant VVocational School about providing labor for the pavilion and had provided him a drawing of the
structure. The school said they were discussing but were interested. The suggested timeframe was by year end. Mr. Jordan
said he and Mr. Carter also discussed the pavilion roof and concrete. Mr. Jordan also discussed the possibility of the
Vocational School putting in vinyl flooring at the Township Hall. He said the Trustees could discuss the pavilion and
flooring more at a future meeting. Mr. Tatman provided the following quotes for rock salt (per ton/delivered): American Salt
$92.76, Cargill $88.92, Compass $85.20, and Morton $85.22. Mr. Henning motioned to hire Roberts Paving, Inc.
Mowrystown, Ohio 45155 for paving around the new maintenance building and in portions of the cemetery as indicated at a
cost of $46,985.00. Mr. Bainum second. All yeas. Mr. Bainum motioned to purchase rock salt from Compass at $85.20 per
ton. Mr. Jordan second. All yeas. Mr. Lefferson said for the record the Township was aware of the water main break
outside the Township Hall on Alexander Lane and had informed the County immediately. The County had been out but had
not yet repaired. Mr. Bainum noted that there is a local hearing on the Clear Mountain Energy solar project August 1% at 5:00
p.m. at the Williamsburg High School.

Emergency Services Report
Chief McCarthy provided a report. The Chief informed the Trustees that the Emergency Services washing machine broke
and due to immediate need a replacement was purchased from Lee and Jacks for $479. Chief McCarthy recommended hiring
Third Generation to perform the upgrades to the Emergency Services building Kitchen as part of the 2023 Community
Development Block Grant. The quote was the lowest received at $74,848.78. In regard to personnel, the Chief reported that
Captain Kirker, Firefighter Paramedic Jordan, and Firefighter EMT Mikayla Mann each received a commendation from Chief
Kevin Riley and the Central Joint Fire and EMS District. The commendations were in regard to actions performed on the
scene of a mutual aid structure fire. These actions correlated with a training Captain Kirker recently attended with a
neighboring department. Mr. Jordan said the Emergency Services Department is doing a phenomenal job and is now being
recognized outside the Township. The Chief notified the Trustees that we are receiving $152,253 from the Ohio Ambulance
Impacted Industry Program. Mr. Jordan motioned to hire Third Generation Restoration 8570 Gwilada Drive, Cincinnati,
Ohio 45236 to perform the upgrades to the Emergency Services building kitchen as part of the 2023 Community
Development Block Grant at a cost of $74,848.78. Mr. Henning second. All yeas. The Trustees thanked those involved in
obtaining the latest grant.

Mr. Lefferson recommended renewing the Township contract with altafiber for 36 months for internet service at the
Emergency Services Building. With the new contract the internet service will be upgraded to Fioptics and speed will
increase from 200Mbps to 600Mbps while the cost will decrease from $525.00 per month to $174.98. Mr. Jordan motioned




Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
July 22, 2024

to renew the altafiber contract for 36 months for internet service at the Emergency Services Building at a cost of $174.98.
Mr. Bainum. All yeas.

Ms. Wilson requested a copy of the Township Noise Resolution. Mr. Lefferson said he would email it to her.

Mr. Hoover asked about uploading police reports to our website. Mr. Lefferson said we do receive direct police reports but
only the summary of activity as presented in the meetings monthly.

Mr. Boll asked if the Trustees or Fiscal Officer would be attending the August 1% solar hearing. Mr. Lefferson said he
planned on attending. The Trustees indicated they would likely have some representation there. Mr. Jordan reiterated that
Joe Speeg was our liaison on the Clear Mountain Energy Project and would be attending.

Mr. Boll asked if a JEDD Meeting was scheduled for this Friday. Mr. Lefferson said there would be a meeting upcoming but
nothing was scheduled at this time.

There being no further business, Mr. Bainum motioned to adjourn at approximately 8:27 p.m. Mr. Henning second. All
yeas.

Fiscal Officer Chairperson



